




The year 2002-2003 is the �rst year in the second decade of our Company's existence. It was indeed 

an eventful year for everyone with many political and economic developments taking place in the 

world around us. We are proud to see that FMI Company has overcome the many challenges over the past year, 

especially in the �nancial services sector over the past few months and has remained �nancially strong. These 

achievements are attributable to the collective support shown by our Managing Agent together with all our managers 

and sta� through their hard work, dedication and adherence to our Core Values. It is also attributable to the continued 

support of our shareholders, our Board of Advisors and Directors. 

Despite the di�culties, most of the entities in which FMI invested performed well and generated impressive returns for 

the year. We achieved a record level of income and net pro�ts, a sum which represents an increase of more than 180% of 

last year.

At our last Annual General Meeting, we announced our corporate plan for the next 5 years. We are pleased to see that 

the �rst year results were far beyond our set goals. FMI Company has grown over 300% in capital and assets during the 

last year and successfully increased our shareholdings in numerous entities. We acquired substantial interest in FMI 

Syndication (FMI Centre), Wood Technology Industries, the Pun Hlaing International Hospital, SPA Motors and SPA 

Motorcycle. The Company also invested into Mandalay Cement Industries Company Limited, a new cement 

manufacturing start up concern in Mandalay.

On behalf of Board of Directors, I would like to thank our Managing Agent, Serge Pun & Associates (Myanmar) Limited 

and Mr. Serge Pun, the managers and sta� of all our investment entities, as well as to all those who have actively 

contributed to the success of our company.

We are con�dent of FMI's continued success in the current year and I look forward to our shareholders adopting your 

Board's proposed dividend payment of Ks. 4,000 per share at the Annual General Meeting. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Hla Kyi

Chairman
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2002-2003 onf ukrÜPD\ 'kwd,(10)ESpf\ yxrESpftjzpf ukefqHk;cJhNyDjzpfygonf/ urÇmESifhwpf0Srf; EdkifiHa&;? pD;yGm;a&; tbufbufrS 

tjzpftysuf ajrmufrsm;pGm&SdcJhaomESpfvnf; jzpfygonf/ vGefcJhaomESpftwGif; pdefac:rIrsm;udk FMI ukrÜPDu aumif;rGefpGm ausmfjzwfEdkifcJhygonf/ 

txl;ojzifh vGefcJhaomvrsm;rSm ay:aygufcJhwJhb@ma&;qdkif&m tcuftcJrsm;Mum;rSm qufvuf&yfwnfEdkifcJhwmudkvnf; *kPf,lygonf/ 

'Dvdk&yfwnfEdkifwmuvnf; uRefawmfwdkU&JU Managing Agent ESifh refae*smrsm;? 0efxrf;rsm;tm;vHk;&JU pkaygif;vkyfaqmifrI? ,HkMunfcsufrsm;udk 

cdkifcdkifrmrm vdkufemBudK;pm;cJhrIawGaMumifh jzpfygonf/ uRefawmfwdkU&JU tpk&S,f,m0ifrsm;? tMuHay;tzGJUESifh 'g½dkufwmtzGJUrsm;&JU tpOfojzifh 

yHhydk;rIrsm;aMumifhvnf; jzpfygw,fvdkU ajymvdkygonf/

tcuftcJawGrsm;pGm&SdcJhayr,fh FMI ukrÜPD&if;ESD;jr§KyfESHcJhwJh vkyfief;trsm;pku vkyfief;rsm;udk aumif;rGefpGmvkyfaqmifEdkifcJhonfhtjyif 

tm;&zG,faumif;aom tjrwfaiGrsm; &&SdcJhygonf/ pHcsdefwifavmufonfh 0ifaiGESifh tjrwfaiG&&SdcJhNyD; ,cifESpfxuf 180%cefU ydkrdkcJhygonf/

,cifESpf ESpfywfvnftpnf;ta0;wGif uRefawmfwdkU\ aemif 5-ESpf pDrHudef;udk wifjycJhygonf/ yxrESpfwGif &&Sdaom&v'frsm;onf 

arQmfrSef;xm;onfh yef;wdkifrsm;xuf rsm;pGmydkrdkcJhygonf/ vGefcJhaomESpfwGif ukrÜPDtaeESifh 300% ydkrdkBuD;xGm;vmí vkyfief;toD;oD;wGifvnf; ydkifqkdifrI 

wdk;csJUEdkifcJhygonf/ FMI Centre, Wood Technology Industries? yef;vdIiftjynfjynfqdkif&maq;½Hk? SPA Motors ESifh SPA Motorcycle rsm;wGif ydkifqdkifrI 

wdk;csJUEdkifcJhygonf/ puf½Hktopfwpfckjzpfaom rEÅav;bdvyfajrpuf½HkwGifvnf; &if;ESD;jr§KyfESHcJhygonf/

uRefawmfwdkU&JU Managing Agent jzpfwJh Mr. Serge Pun  ESifh Serge Pun & Associates (Myanmar) Ltd., udkvnf;aumif;? vkyfief;cGJ 

refae*smrsm;? 0efxrf;rsm;tm;vHk;udkvnf;aumif;? tbufbufrS uRefawmfwdkUukrÜPD\atmifjrifrIudk wpfbufwpfvrf; ulnDyHhydk;cJhaom 

yk*¾dKvfrsm;tm;vHk;udkvnf;aumif; 'g½dkufwmtzGJU0ifrsm;udk,fpm; aus;Zl;wifpum;ajymvdkygonf/

a&SUvmrnfhESpfwGifvnf; FMI ukrÜPDonf qufvufatmifjrifrnf[k ,HkMunfygonf/ xdkUaMumifh uRefawmfwdkU\ 'g½dkufwmtzGJUu 

tqdkjyKxm;onfh tpk&S,f,mwpfpkudk tjrwfa0pk usyf 4,000 uspDay;&ef tpDtpOfudk tpk&S,f,m0ifrsm; oabmwlrnf[k arQmfvifhygonf/

'g½dkufwmtzGJU0ifudk,fpm;

OD;vSMunf

Ouú|
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Dear Shareholders,

As I begin to make my annual report for the �rst time in the second decade of FMI, please allow me to 

�rst wish each and everyone of you Health, Prosperity and Happiness. Despite the many serious di�culties in the 

economy, both regionally and locally, FMI has maintained a respectable pro�t and is able to pay higher dividends than 

last year.

FMI's strength lies in its diversity of many strategic investments, most of them having a strong synergy amongst 

themselves. As a result, income for the year ending 31st March, 2003 amounted to Ks. 1,345 million (Last year income 

was Ks. 473 million) which re�ects an increase of 185% over the previous year. Commensurately, Net Pro�t for the year 

increased by 259% passing the billion mark to Ks. 1,078,291,238.23 ( Net pro�t last year was Ks. 308,526,400). This 

substantial increase income signi�es an excellent start for our corporate 5-Year Plan announced at the last Annual 

General Meeting. 

Your Board has recommended a dividend of Ks. 4,000 per share (last year dividend was Ks.3,500 per share), which 

is 14% higher than the amount paid last year which I trust shareholders will support at the Annual General Meeting. It is 

noteworthy to add that despite the many challenges the business sector faced during the past year, FMI is still able to 

pay a dividend higher than the previous year. 

As in past years, shareholders were given the option to choose to receive dividends either in cash or in scrip. For 

the election of scrip dividends, your Board has resolved to allot one fully paid new share for every 15 existing shares 

eligible for dividends. This e�ectively price the new shares at Ks. 60,000 per share which is 14% lower than the average 

market price of Ks. 70,000 over the past 3 months. 

For many years, despite the fact that we had an e�cient share exchange trading centre, both in Yangon and 

Mandalay, the number of shares available for sale has been very limited. This has somewhat hindered the free �ow of 

trading in FMI shares. It is our intention to intensify the activities of our Share Exchange Centre in the future and would 

thus urge shareholders to contact us if you wish to sell your dividend scrip or existing shares. We hope that this program 

would activate the trading of FMI shares to a more consistent and �uid level which would bring long term bene�ts to the 

shareholders.

Managing Agent's Report
U Theim Wai @ Mr. Serge Pun
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Your company continues to hold 10% interest in MYANMAR NISSAN and 5% 
interest in MYANMAR SUZUKI respectively. Our investments in these two automobile 
companies continue to encounter di�culties mainly due to non-availability of import 
licenses for the former and highly limited quotas for assembly for the latter.

During last year, MYANMAR NISSAN mainly focused on the sales of spare parts and servicing work and produced a 
small net pro�t of Ks. 25.49 million. However, in view of the carried forward losses of previous years, the entity shall not be 
paying any dividends.

MYANMAR SUZUKI MOTOR COMPANY however had a much tougher challenge to show satisfactory returns to its 
shareholders due to the very small number of production of cars and motorcycles. We were however very fortunate that 
the major shareholder Suzuki Motors of Japan agreed to waive certain major costs which allowed this entity to show a 
marginal pro�t of US$38,274.

We will continue to hold our interest in these two companies in anticipation of long-term business potential in the 
future.

Myanmar Nissan Co., Ltd.
Myanmar Suzuki Motor Co., Ltd.

FMI ukrÜPDtaejzifh Myanmar Nissan wGif 10%ESifh Myanmar Suzuki wGif 5% toD;oD; qufvuf&if;ESD;jr§KyfESH 

xm;ygonf/ uRefawmfwdk Y\ þarmfawmf,mOfukrÜPDESpfckwGif &if;ESD;jrSKyfESHxm;rIrSm tcuftcJrsm;udk qufvufajz½Sif;ae&NyD;? 

Myanmar Nissan BuHKawGU&onfrSm oGif;ukefvdkifpifr&onfh tcuftcJjzpfNyD;? Myanmar Suzuki BuHKawGU&onfrSm wyfqif 

xkwfvkyfrIwGif ta&twGuf uefYowfcHxm;&jcif; jzpfygonf/

vGefcJhonfhESpfwGif Myanmar Nissan taeESifh tydkypönf;a&mif;csjcif;ESifh jyKjyifjcif;vkyfief;rS tom;wiftjrwfaiG 

usyf25.49oef; &½SdcJhygonf/ þvkyfief;cGJwGif vGefcJhaomESpfrsm;\ t½HI;vufusef½Sdaeojzifh  tjrwfa0pkrcGJa0oifhaMumif; qHk;jzwfcJh 

ygonf/

Myanmar Suzuki Motor ukrÜPDtaeESifh ydkrdkcufcJonfh tcuftcJrsm;BuHKawGU&NyD;? 

armfawmf,mOfESifh armfawmfqkdifu,frsm; ta&twGuftenf;i,fom xkwfvkyfcGifh&½Sdjcif;aMumifh 

¤if;\ tpk½S,f,m&Sifrsm;tm; auseyfzG,f&vm'frsm;udk aqmifMuOf;ay;Edkifjcif;r&SdcJhyg/ odkY&mwGif 

yifrtpk½S,f,m&Sifjzpfaom *syef Suzuki Motors rS t"duukefusp&dwfrsm;udk yvyfay;&ef 

oabmwlnDcJhonfhtwGuf tjrwftpGef; tar&duefa':vm 38ç274 &½SdapcJhygonf/

uREfkyfwdkYtaejzifh tem*wf a&½SnftusdK;pD;yGm;udk arQmfrSef;í þukrÜPDESpfckwGif qufvuf&if;ESD;jr§KyfESHrnf jzpfygonf/

Manufacturing & Value Added Industry

Myanmar Nissan Co., Ltd.
Myanmar Suzuki Motor Co., Ltd.
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SPA Motorcycle Limited
Trading & Distribution

As in the case of SPA Motors, SPA MOTORCYCLE LTD is the second entity which your Company decided to 
acquire all of the 80% outstanding shares for a consideration of Ks. 1,443 million to make it a wholly owned subsidiary. 

Along with our interests in Myanmar Suzuki Motors, Myanmar Nissan and SPA Motors, your Company now has full-
fledge interest in the two-wheel and four-wheel automobile industry from manufacturing and trading to distribution and 
servicing.

SPA Motorcycle performed another good year on distributing Suzuki motorcycles and automobiles nationwide 
despite the limited number of units available for distribution. We were able to attain a high level of customer satisfaction 
which translated to an impressive profit result for the year. 

I am glad to report a net profit of Ks. 540.73 million (last year: 281.49 million) and a dividend payout of Ks. 250 
million (last year: 200 million) of which your company received all.

The outlook for this entity remains positive and there is good reason to believe that this entity will continue to do 
well with the unabated demand for Suzuki motorcycles and automobiles.

SPA Motorcycle Limited

SPA Motors uJhodkYyif SPA MOTORCYCLE LTD. tm; FMI ukrÜPDu &mEIef;jynfhydkifqdkif&ef usef½Sdonfh½S,f,m 80% udk usyf 

1ç443 oef;jzifh0,f,lvdkufonfh 'kwd,ajrmuf vkyfief;cGJjzpfygonf/

Myanmar Suzuki Motors, Myanmar Nissan ESifh SPA Motors vkyfief;cGJrsm;ESifhtwl aygif;pyfí FMI ukrÜPDtaeESifh 

ESpfbD;wyfESifh av;bD;wyf armfawmf,mOfvkyfief;u@wGif xkwfvkyfjcif;ESifh ul;oef;a&mif;0,fjcif;rS jzefYcsdjcif;ESifh jyKjyifxdef;odrf;jcif;odkU 

wdkifatmif armfawmf,mOfvkyfief;wGif bufaygif;pHkrSvkyfaqmifEdkifNyDjzpfygonf/

SPA Motocycle onf Suzuki armfawmfqdkifu,fESifharmfawmf,mOfrsm;tm; ta&twGuf tuefYtowfjzifhom jzefYcsd&aomfvnf; 

wpfjynfvHk;twdkif;twmtxd ,ckESpftwGufatmifjrifpGm jzefYcsdEdkifcJhygonf/ oHk;pGJolrsm;\ pdwfauseyfrI txl;&½Sdatmif pGrf;aqmif 

EdkifcJhjcif;aMumifhvnf; þESpftwGuf xl;jcm;onfh tjrwfaiGudk &½SdEdkifcJhjcif; jzpfygonf/

,ckESpftwGuf tom;wiftjrwfaiGrSm usyf 540.73 oef; (,refESpfu usyf 

281.49 oef;) jzpfNyD;? tjrwfa0pk  usyf250 oef; (,refESpfu usyf 200 oef;) cGJa0 

ay;cJh&m FMI ukrÜPDrS &mEIef;jynfhvufcH&½SdaMumif; *kPf,lpGm wifjytyfygonf/

þvkyfief;cGJ\ a½SUtvm;tvmrSm aumif;rGefrnf[k arQmfrSef;NyD;? Suzuki 
armfawmfqdkifu,fESifh armfawmf,mOfrsm;udk aps;uGuf0,fvdktm; avsmhenf;rIr½Sdjcif; 

ESifhtnD vkyfief;qufvuf aumif;rGefrnf[k ,HkMunfygonf/        

M O T O R C Y C L E
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SPA Motors
Services Industry

One of the significant decisions your Board made during the year was to invest Ks. 184 million to  acquire all of the 

80% outstanding shares of this entity so that it will become a 100% wholly owned subsidiary. This is in line with the 

decision that the automobile business shall become a major business of the Company. 

The performance of SPA Motors was exceptionally good during the year recording a net profit of Ks. 57.42 million 

(last year: Ks. 32.36 million). The entity resolved to declare a dividend of Ks. 40 million (last year: Ks. 30 million) of 

which your Company received all.

Despite the many challenges brought about by volatile price movements and scarce supply, we are confident that this 

entity will continue to be a profitable business in the coming year.

SPA Motors (ukrÜPDtrnf May Enterprise Ltd.)

þESpftwGif; 'g½dkufwmtzGJU\ t"duqHk;jzwfcsufrsm;teuf wpf&yfrSm  þvkyfief;cGJ\ vufusef&S,f,m 80%udk usyf 184 oef;jzifh 

0,f,lvdkufNyD; &mEIef;jynfhydkifqdkifvdkufjcif; jzpfygonf/ þqHk;jzwfcsufonf armfawmf,mOfvkyfief;tm; ukrÜPD\t"duusaom 

vkyfief;wpfcktjzpf aqmif½Guf&ef qHk;jzwfcsufESifhtnD jzpfygonf/

,ckESpf SPA Motors \ vkyfief;pGrf;aqmifrIrSm xl;jcm;aumif;rGefNyD;? tom;wiftjrwfaiG usyf 57.42 oef; &½SdcJhygonf (,refESpf 

- usyf 32.36 oef;)/ þvkyfief;cGJrS tjrwfa0pk usyf 40 oef; cGJa0ay;cJh&m FMI ukrÜPDrS tm;vHk;vufcH&½SdcJhygonf (,refESpfu usyf 

30 oef; cGJa0ay;cJhonf)/

aps;EIef;rwnfNidrfrIrsm;? ypönf;&Sm;yg;rIrsm; ponfhtcuftcJrsm; 

&Sdaomfvnf; uREfkyfwdkYtaejzifh þvkyfief;cGJonf a½SUvmrnfhESpfwGifvnf; 

tusdK;tjrwf&½Sdrnfh vkyfief;jzpfonf[k cdkifrmpGm ,HkMunfygonf/

(Corporate name as May Enterprise Ltd.)
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SHINE Professional Dry Clean & Laundry Services

FMI ukrÜPDonf þukrÜPD\ 35%udk qufvufydkifqdkifxm;ygonf/ 

ESpftpOD;ydkif;wGif ½dIif;\vkyfief;udk jr§ifhwifcsJUxGif&mwGif b@ma&;bufrSvnf;aumif;? vltiftm;bufrSvnf;aumif; rsm;pGm 

&if;ESD;cJhygonf/ ,cktcsdefonf vkyfief;csJUxGifNyD; 'kwd,ESpftwGif;odkU a&muf&SdaeNyDjzpfygonf/ rwfvukeftxd ½dIif;qdkifcGJ (11) qdkif 

zGifhvSpfcJhNyD; udk,fydkifpuf½HkopfodkU ajymif;a&TUcJhygonf/ ,cifESpfu tpysKd;cJhaom Franchise vkyfief;onfvnf; arQmfvifhcJhaom 

&v'frsm; &&S dcJ h NyD;jzpfí Franchise vkyfief;onfvnf; ,ckaumif;rGefpGm vnfywfaeNyDjzpfygonf/ qdkifcG Jrsm;taeESif h 

jynfaxmifpk&dyfomvrf;? vrf;rawmf? Adkvfwaxmif? a&T*Hkwdkif? yg&rD? oCFef;uRef;? ok0PÖ? wuúodkvf&dyfomvrf;opf? vSnf;wef;? 

r&rf;ukef;ESifh vdIifom,m FMI City wGif zGifhvSpfxm;ygonf/

puf½HktwGuf pufypönf;opfrsm;tm; bPfacs;aiGudktoHk;jyKí &if;EDS;jr§KyfESHcJh&m? ,cifvkyfEdkifaom yrmP\ (3)qru 

ydkrdkvkyfaqmifEdkifNyD;? ydkrdkaumif;rGefaom 0efaqmifrIay;EdkifcJhygonf/ txnfcsKyfpuf½Hkrsm;? [dkw,frsm;? pm;aomufqdkifrsm;ponfh 

vkyfief;rsm;tygt0if tjcm; Customer rsm;vnf; ½dIif;\0efaqmifrIudk wdk;jr§ifhtoHk;jyKvmaMumif; awGU&ygonf/ vufvD Customer 

rsm;vnf; ydkrdkrsm;jym;vmygonf/

,ckESpf0ifaiGrSm ,refESpfrsm;xuf 80% cefU wdk;jr§ifhvmcJhygonf/ b@ma&;p&dwfrsm;udk t"duay;acscJhojzifh ,ckESpf\ 

tom;wiftjrwfrSm usyf 13.56 oef; (,refESpfu usyf 23.03 oef; jzpfonf/) &&SdcJhygonf/ tjrwfaiGudk vkyfief;csJU&ef 

toHk;jyKxm;aom acs;aiGrsm;udk jyefvnfqyf&ef qHk;jzwfcJhaomaMumifh tjrwfa0pkray;&ef 'g½dkufwmtzGJUu qHk;jzwfcJhygonf/

 vmrnfhESpfwGifvnf; aumif;rGefaom&v'frsm;ESifh tjrwfrSefrSef&&Sdrnf[k cefUrSef;ygonf/
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The Services Industry

Your company continues to own 35% of this entity.

At the beginning of the year, Shine invested substantially in �nancial and human resources to upgrade and expand 

the business. We have now entered the second year of operation following this major revamp. The entity increased its 

outlets to 11 by the end of March and moved into its new self owned factory at the same time. The franchise program 

which was introduced a year ago has achieved its planned results and the franchisees are now operating their respective 

outlets smoothly. We now have outlets in Pyidaungsu Yeiktha Street, Lanmadaw, Botahtaung, Shwegondine, Parami, 

Thingangyun, Thuwanna, University Avenue, Hledan, Mayangone and Hlaing Thayar-FMI City.

Our investment in new machinery, most of it through bank borrowings, has enabled Shine to triple its production 

capacity and improve its service quality. We have seen an increasing volume of turnover from medium and small 

businesses such as garment factories, hotels and restaurants as more and more clients come to appreciate the 

professional service provided by Shine. Our market share of the retail market has also increased. 

Turnover for the year recorded an increase of 80% from last year resulting in our pro�t after tax to be Ks. 13.56 

million (last year: 23.03million). For reasons of �nancial prudence, the Board of this entity has resolved to utilize the 

pro�ts to pay down its borrowings and have thus decided not to pay out any dividends this year. 

As we enter a new year of operation we look forward to another year of good results and stable pro�tability. 

SHINE Professional Dry Clean & Laundry Services
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vGefcJhaomESpfwGif FMI Centre tm; ydkifqdkifrIudk 26% rS 70% txd 44% ukdusyfoef; 2ç420 jzifh 0,f,lí wdk;jr§ifhcJhygonf/ 

xdkUaMumifh uREkfyfwdkUukrÜPD\ txifu&ydkifqdkifrIESifh ½Hk;csKyftjzpf xif½Sm;aom þtaqmuftODBuD;udk t"duydkifqdkifrItjzpf ydkifqdkifNyD 

jzpfygonf/

½Hk;cef;rsm;iSm;&rf;aps;uGufrSm þESpfwGifwdk;wufvmonf[k rqdkEdkifaomfvnf; t"du iSm;&rf;xm;ol ½dk;rbPf&Sdjcif;aMumifh 

½Hk;cef;rsm;\ 92%udk iSm;&rf;EdkifcJhygonf/ qdkifcef;rsm;url 100%jynfh wpfESpfvHk;iSm;&rf;xm;NyD; jzpfygonf/

þukrÜPD\b@ma&;&v'frsm;rSm tjrwfcGefay;aqmifNyD; tom;wiftjrwfaiG usyf 277.28 oef;jzpfí ,cifESpfxuf 96% 

ydkrdkwdk;wufvmygonf/ (,cifESpftom;wifjrwfaiG 141.28 oef;jzpfonf/) tjrwfa0pk usyf 240oef;tm; cGJa0cJh&m ,cifESpfxuf140% 

wdk;wufcJhygonf/ (,cifESpf tjrwfa0pkrSm usyf 100 oef;jzpfonf/) ¤if;teuf FMI ukrÜPD\ tcsKd;us&aiGrSm  usyf 168 oef; 

jzpfygonf/

½dk;rbPftaejzifh aemif(3)ESpfxd qufvufiSm;&rf;rnf jzpfaomaMumifh þukrÜPD\ aemifESpftajctaerSm wnfNidrfonf[k 

qdkEdkifygonf/

FMI Centre udkydkifqdkifxm;aom FMI Syndication Limited
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FMI Syndication Limited holding FMI Centre
Real Estate Development

Your Company increased its interest from 26% to 70% by acquiring an additional 44% shareholding in this company 

during the year for an amount of Ks. 2,420 million. With a majority holding now, this landmark building which carries our 

corporate name can now be really considered as our flagship asset and headquarters. 

Even though office rental market did not demonstrate any positive signs of improvement during the year, the security 

of having Yoma Bank as our anchor tenant attributed to a high occupancy rate of 92% for the office portion. The shopping 

centre portion of the building remain fully occupied throughout the year. 

The financial results of the year for this entity showed a profit after tax of Ks.277.28 million which represents a 96% 

increase to last year. (Last year's net profit after tax: Ks. 141.28 million). A dividend of Ks.240 million was declared which 

again represented a 140% increment to last year's results (Last year's dividend: Ks.100 million). Your company received a 

dividend sum of Ks. 168 million as its share.

Outlook for this entity remains stable as Yoma Bank renewed its lease for the majority of its office space for a further 

period of 3 years.  
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FMI Garden Development Limited

þtaqmufttHktdrf&mazmfxkwfa&;ukrÜPDwGif FMI ukrÜPDrS 47.5 % udk qufvufydkifqdkifxm;ygonf/ 

 2002ckESpf Zefe0g&DvwGif pwifa&mif;cscJhaom Orchid Gardens Development pDrHudef; vkyfief;aMumifh FMI Garden 

Development onf aumif;aom ESpfwpfESpfausmfjzwfcJhonf[k qdkEdkifygonf/ vHk;csif;tdrf (144) vHk;udk tqifh (4) qifhcGJía&mif;cscJhNyD;? 

0ifaiG usyfoef; (6,700) &&SdcJhygonf/ (pDrHudef;pwifcsdefrS tdrf 185 vHk;a&mif;cscJhNyD;jzpfonf)/ vGefcJhonfhESpftwGif; tdrftvHk;a& (58) 

vHk; aqmufvkyftyfESHcJhNyD; jzpfygonf/ usef&Sdaomtdrfrsm;udkvnf; vmrnfhvtenf;i,ftwGif; aqmufvkyfNyD;pD;? tyfESHEdkifrnfjzpfygonf/

  Orchid Gardens \ atmifjrifrIonf t"dutm;jzifh t&nftaoG;aumif;rGefjcif;ESifh aps;EIef;csdKomjcif;aMumifhjzpfygonf/ 

xdkUtjyif FMI City  \ aexdkifrIywf0ef;usifaumif;rGefjcif;ESifh xdef;odrf;tkyfcsKyfrIaumif;rGefjcif;wdkUudk uRefawmfwdkU\ Customer rsm; 

tygt0if trsm;jynfolrS todtrSwfjyKNyD;? pdwf0ifpm;rIydkrdkrsm;jym;apcJhygonf/

   Orchid Gardens tdrf&mtjyif Finger Lake tuGufrsm;ESifh FMI City twGif; tjcm;tuGufrsm;udkvnf; a&mif;csEdkifcJhygonf/ 

,refESpfu usyfoef; 7,659 0ifaiG&&SdcJhygonf/ 'g½dkufwmtzGJUrStjrwfa0pk xkwfa0&efqHk;jzwfcJhNyD; FMI \ tjrwfa0pktjzpf usyf 

696,250,000 (,cifESpf 374,500,000) vufcH&½SdcJhygonf/

   FMI Garden Development Ltd. rS yef;vdIifa*gufuGif;tdrf&mudk 7% ydkifqkdifxm;ygonf/ vGefcJhaomESpftwGif; 

yef;vIdifa*gufuGif;tdrf&mwGif Gary Player 'DZdkif;twdkif; a*gufuGif; (18)usif;vHk; wnfaqmufNyD;pD;cJhygonf/ yef;vdIifa*gufuGif;zGifhyGJudk 

,cifESpfEdk0ifbmvuusif;ycJhNyD; urÇmausmfa*gufynm&SifESifh a*gufuGif;'DZdkif;ynm½Sif Mr. Gary Player udk,fwdkif jrefrmEdkifiHodkU 

yxrOD;qHk;tBudrf vma&mufcsD;jr§ifh tm;ay;cJhygonf/ þtcrf;tem;onf yef;vdIifa*gufuGif;tdrf&mESifh jrefrmEdkifiH a*gufoD; 

tm;upm;orm;rsm;twGuf *kPf,lp&mtcrf;tem;wpfckjzpfcJhygonf/ Mr. Player onf awmiftmz&duEdkifiHodkUtjyefwGif jrefrmEdkifiH&Sd 

yef;vdIifa*gufuGif;onf rdrdupm;cJhaom taumif;qHk;uGif; (5) ck xJwGif yg0ifí urÇmausmf Augusta uGif;ESifhyif ,SOfícsD;usL;cJhygonf/ 

,if;aumufEkwfcsufudk tifwmeufay:½Sd Gary Player tzGJU\ Web-site wGif rSwfwrf;wifcJhaomaMumifh uRefawmfwdkUtwGuf tvGef 

*kPf,lp&mjzpfygonf/

     FMI City \ tem*gwfonf tvm;tvmaumif;rGefrnf[k ,HkMunfNyD;? Orchid Gardens ESifh yef;vSdKifa*gufuGif;½Sdtdrf&mrsm;udk 

qufvufazmfxkwf a&mif;csoGm;rnfjzpfygonf/ ,if;vkyfief;rS vmrnfhESpfwGif auseyfzG,faumif;aom tjrwftpGef;rsm; &½Sdrnf[k 

arQmfvifhxm;ygonf/
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Your Company continues to hold 47.5% interest in this real estate development company.

FMI Garden Development Ltd. had a good year since the launch of the Orchid Gardens project in early January 

2002. A total of 144 units in 4 Phases have been sold out during the year generating a turnover of more than 6,700 

million (Total number of units sold since launch: 185 units). During the past year, 58 units were completed and 

delivered to home owners while the remainder of the units will be constructed and delivered over the coming months. 

The success of Orchid Gardens can be mainly attributed to delivering a quality product at an affordable price. No 

doubt the established track record of FMI City as a well managed and highly desirable residential neighborhood gave 

much impetus to sales and we are very glad to receive much praise from our customers and the general public at large. 

In addition to our success at Orchid Gardens, we were also able to sell home lots at Finger Lake and other phases. 

Turnover during the year was Ks. 7,659 million. The Board of Directors of this entity resolved to pay a dividend and 

your Company's share of the dividends was Ks. 696,250,000 (last year dividend: Ks. 374,500,000). 

FMI Garden Development Ltd. also holds a 7% indirect interest in Pun Hlaing Golf Estate (PHGE). During the 

year, PHGE completed the development of its 18-hole Gary Player designed golf course. To commemorate the official 

opening of Pun Hlaing Golf Club last November, the internationally renowned golf legend and our course designer, Mr. 

Gary Player, made his first visit to Myanmar to grace us with his attendance. It was a very successful event and a high 

point for PHGE as well as the golf fraternity of Myanmar.  Mr. Player upon his return to South Africa issued a 

statement praising Pun Hlaing Golf Club as "one of the five best courses I have played in the world and reminds me much of Augusta" 

These remarks prominently posted on the Gary Player Organization web site was indeed a tremendous honor for us. 

Outlook for this entity remains positive and we continue to 

promote the sales of home units in Orchid Gardens and Pun Hlaing Golf 

Estate. We are optimistic that this entity will generate a favorable return 

in the coming year.

FMI Garden Development Limited
Real Estate Development
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Yoma Bank Limited

½dk;rbPfwGifydkifqdkifrIrSm vGefcJhaomESpf 'DZifbmvu ydkifqdkifrI 1.03% 0,f,lcJhrIaMumifh 35.6% txd wdk;jrifhvmygonf/

vGefcJhaomESpfwGif tyfaiGESifhacs;aiGrSm ododomomwdk;wufcJhaMumif; awGUcJh&ygonf/ 14-2-2003 &ufaeUwGif bPftyfaiG 

yrmPrSm usyf 135 bDvD,H (azazmf0g&D-2002 wGif usyf 102 bDvD,H) &SdNyD;? acs;aiGyrmPrSm usyf 110 bDvD,H (azazmf0g&D-2002 

wGif usyf 73 bDvD,H) toD;oD;&SdcJhygonf/ &mcdkifEIef;tm;jzifh 32% ESifh 51% toD;oD; wdk;wufcJhygonf/

þodkU BuD;xGm;vmrIESifhtnD vGefcJhonfhESpftwGif; ½dk;rbPfonf ¤if;\xnfh0ifrwnfaiGudk usyfoef; 3,500 rS usyfoef; 4,500 

odkU 1 bDvD,H wdk;jr§ifhcJhygonf/ FMI ukrÜPDtaeESifh ½dk;rbPfwGif xnfh0ifxm;aom &if;ESD;jr§KyfESHaiGudkvnf; usyfoef; 1,246 rS usyfoef; 

1,638 odkU tcsdK;uswdk;jr§ifhcJhygonf/ bPf½Sdtjcm;&HyHkaiGrsm;tygt0if tpk&S,f,m&Sifrsm;\ vuf½Sdpkpkaygif;&if;ESD;aiGrSm usyfoef; 7,078 

jzpfygonf/

b@ma&;0efaqmifrIe,fy,f½Sd yk*¾vdu bPftm;vHk;eD;yg; aiGom;tusyftwnf; jzpfrIonf 14-2-2003 &ufaeUrSpí 

uRefawmfwdkUxH xdcdkufvmcJhygonf/ ½dk;rbPftaeESifh bPfcGJtrsm;qHk;&SdNyD; wpfOD;csif;tyfESHaiGyrmPenf;aomvlOD;a& trsm;qHk;&Sdaom 

bPfwpfcktaeESifh þtusyftwnf;udk cufcufcJcJ&ifqdkifcJh&ygonf/ aiGtyfESHolrsm;\ ½kwfjcnf;wNydKifeufwnf; aiGom;xkwf,lrIudk 

jznfhqnf;ay;Edkif&ef aiGom;vHkvHkavmufavmuf r&SdcJhaomaMumifh aiGtyfESHolrsm;onf pdk;&drfpdwfjzifhaiGrsm;udk ydkrdkxkwf,lMu&m 

aiGom;jywfvyfrI'Pfudk ydkrdkqdk;½Gm;pGmcHpm;cJh&ygonf/

rwfvwpfvvHk; þodkUaomtcuftcJudk cHcJh&aomfvnf; 2002-2003 ckESpftwGuf 0ifaiGrSm pdwfauseyfbG,f&&SdcJhygonf/ 

,ckESpf tom;wif tjrwfaiGusyfoef; 1,266 &&SdcJhNyD;? ,cifESpfrsm;xuf tjrwfaiG  27% ydkrdkygonf/ bPfOya't& owfrSwfxm;aom 

t&HaiGrsm;ESifh tjcm;vdktyfrnfh t&HaiGrsm;twGuf z,fcsefNyD;aemuf 'g½dkufwmtzGJUrS tjrwfa0pk usyfoef; 300 cGJa0ay;&ef 

qHk;jzwfcJhygonf/ FMI ukrÜPDtaeESifh usyf 106.8 oef;&&SdcJhygonf/ 

bPfcGJrefae*smrsm;ESifh 0efxrf;rsm;onf vGefcJhonfhvrsm;rS tcuftcJaygif;pHkudk owÅd&Sd&Sdjzifh &ifqdkifajz½Sif;cJhonfudk uRefawmfh 

taeESifh txl;*kPfjyKrSwfwrf;wifNyD;? tcuftcJMuHKawGUcsdefrSm bPfudkopöm&Sd&SdESifh wm0efxrf;aqmifcJhonfudkvnf; txl;aus;Zl;wif½Sd 

ygonf/ uRefawmfwdkU\ ajrmufjrm;pGmaom Customer rsm;udkvnf; pdwf&Snfonf;cHjcif;jzifh bPfudk ulnDyHhydk;ay;cJhonfhtwGuf 

txl;aus;Zl;wifvdkygonf/

vmrnfhESpfwGif ½dk;rbPfonf tcuftcJrsKd;pHkudk &ifqdkif&ygvdrfhrnff/ xkwfacs;xm;aom aiGawmfawmfrsm;rsm;ukd jyefvnf 

aumufcHNyD;? bPftyfaiGrsm;udk jyefvnfxkwfay;vdkuf&onfhtwGuf ,cifESpfrsm;xuf 0ifaiGtvGefenf;oGm;rnfjzpfaMumif; cefUrSef;xm; 

ygonf/ þtcuftcJpdefac:rIrsm;udk bPftkyfcsKyfrItzGJUtaeESifh BudKwifoabmaygufNyD;? vmrnfhESpfwGif &v'fusqif;rI tenf;qHk; 

jzpfap&ef enf;vrf;trsKd;rsKd;jzifh aqmif&GufoGm;rnfjzpfaMumif; wifjytyfygonf/
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Your company's interest in Yoma Bank has slightly increased to 35.6% due to a minor acquisition of 1.03% in 

December last year.

During the year Yoma Bank posted an impressive growth in deposits and loans. On the 14th of February 2003, our 

deposits stood at Ks. 135 billion (February 2002: Ks. 102 billion); and our loan portfolio stood at Ks. 110 billion 

(February 2002: Ks. 73 billion). The increment in percentage terms was 32% and 51% respectively for the period.

To cope with this growth, Yoma Bank increased its paid up capital by Ks. 1 billion from Ks. 3,500 million to       

Ks. 4,500 million during the year; and FMI has thus correspondingly increased our investment in this entity from        

Ks. 1,246 million to 1,638 million. Total shareholders funds at Yoma Bank today stands at Ks. 7,078 million.

However, beginning from the 14th of February, 2003, an industry wide liquidity crisis hit us as it did almost all 

private banks in the country. Yoma Bank, having the most number of branches nationwide as well as the most number of 

small depositors inevitably took the brunt of this. The unavailability of adequate cash to defray the simultaneous cash 

withdrawal by depositors led to a near panic run on the banks which further propelled it into a severe liquidity crunch. 

Despite the hardship which the bank endured for the month of March, the results for the 2002-2003 fiscal year 

was very satisfactory. Net profits for the year was Ks. 1,266 million after tax showing an improvement of 27% over the 

same period last year. The Board of Directors resolved to pay a dividend of Ks. 300 million after having provided for 

statutory reserves and contingency provisions. Your Company received its share of dividends in the sum of Ks. 106.8 

million.

I would like to make a special point of commending all our Managers and Staff of Yoma Bank for courageously 

facing the monumental challenges over the past several months and express our gratitude to those who have served the 

bank loyally in the face of adversity. We would also wish to thank thousands of our customers who have supported the 

bank through the crisis with their cooperation and forbearance. 

It is to be expected that the bank would be facing acute challenges 

during the present fiscal year. In addition to endeavouring to recall a good 

portion of our loans to pay depositors, we will be looking at a much 

reduced business turnover for the year. The management of the bank is 

fully aware of these challenges and will work hard to take measures so as 

to ensure that year end results will have a minimum of negative impact.

Yoma Bank Limited
Financial Services
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azaz:0g&DvrSpwifí vpmrsm;rdrdqE´tavQmuf avQmhcsjcif;tygt0if ukrÜPDtwGif; p&dwfrsm;avQmhcsjcif;udk csufcsif;vkyfaqmifcJhNyD;? 

xda&mufrIvnf;½SdcJhygonf/ þNcdK;jcHaqmif&Gufcsufrsm; tm;vHk;udk vkyfief;cGJwdkif;½Sd 0efxrf;rsm;\ ulnDaxmufyHhrIjzifh jyKvkyfEdkifcJhygonf/ þtjzpfonf 

tm;&MunfEl;zG,f&m tjzpftysufjzpfNyD; uREkfyfwdkUtzGJUtpnf;\ tiftm;wpf&yfjzpfayonf/

vmrnfhESpftwGuf NcHKíMunfh&vQif pdefac:vmrnfhtcuftcJrsm;udk taumif;bufrS &ifqdkifajz&Sif;Edkif&ef owdBuD;pGmxm;&rnfjzpfonf/ 

rnfodkUyifjzpfapumrl FMI ukrÜPDonf tcuftcJtrsKd;rsKd;udk ausmfvGefEdkifrnf[k ,HkMunfonfhtjyif tpk½S,f,m½Sifrsm;odkU oifhavsmfonfh 

tjrwfa0pkrsm; qufvufíay;tyfEdkifrnf[k ,HkMunfygonf/

ed*Hk;csKyftaejzifh tpk&S,f,m½Sifrsm;\axmufcHrIudkvnf;aumif;? 'g½dkufwmtzGJU0ifrsm;ESifh tMuHay;yk*¾dKvfrsm;\ tMuHÓPfaumif;rsm;ESifh 

tm;ay;rIrsm;udkvnf;aumif; aus;Zl;Oyum&wif&SdygaMumif; -

av;pm;pGmjzifh

odrf;a0(c) Serge Pun

Managing Agent
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FMI ukrÜPD\ &if;ESD;jr§KyfESHxm;aom vkyfief;cGJrsm;\ vnfywfrItajctaeudk qufvufí tpD&ifcH 

wifjyygrnf/ ,if;vkyfief;cGJrsm;taMumif; rwifjyrD ,ckESpftwGif; xl;jcm;jzpf&yfrsm;udk OD;pGmwifjytyfygonf/

ukrÜPDwpfckvHk;taeESifh xl;jcm;csufrSm FMI ukrÜPDrS &if;ESD;jr§KyfESHxm;aom vkyfief;cGJrsm;wGif ,ckESpftwGif;ü 

atmufygtwdkif;0,f,lNyD;? wdk;csJU&if;ESD;jr§KyfESHEdkifcJhygonf/

(u) FM Syndication (holding FMI Center) \ 44%?

(c) SPA Motorcycle \ 80%?

(*) SPA Motors \ 80%?

(C) Wood Technology Industries \ 55.3% ESifh

(i) Pun Hlaing International Hospital  \ 25% wdkUjzpfygonf/

xdkUtjyif bdvyfajrpuf½Hktopfjzpfaom Mandalay Cement Industries Company Limited (MCICL) wGif 25%udk 0,f,lí 

&if;ESD;jr§KyfESHrItopf jyKvkyfcJhygonf/ þpuf½Hkonf avmavmq,f wpfESpfvQif bdvyfajrwefcsdef 90ç000 xkwfvkyfEdkifNyD;? 'kwd,tqifhNyD;pD;ygu 

wpfESpfvQifwef 200ç000 txd wdk;wufxkwfvkyfEdkifrnf jzpfygonf/ MCICL wGif &if;ESD;jr§KyfESHvdkufjcif;jzifh ukrÜPD\ pufrIxkwfukefu@wGif 

&if;ESD;jr§KyfESHrI wdk;csJUoGm;onfhtjyif yHkrSef0ifaiGrsm;rsm;&½Sdaom vkyfief;wpfck wdk;yGm;vmygonf/

þuJhodkU &if;ESD;jr§KyfESHrIrsm; 0,f,l&efwefzdk; usyfoef; 10ç338 tm; ukrÜPDrS tpk½S,f,mwpfpkvQif usyf 70ç000 jzifhwefzdk;oifhí 

tpk½S,f,mtopf 147ç680 xkwfa0ay;jcif;jzifh ay;acscJhygonf/ ,if;0,f,lrItwGuf vGefcJhonfhESpf 'DZifbmvwGif nd§ESdKif;aqG;aEG;rIrsm; NyD;jywfcJhNyD;? 

,ckESpf azazmf0g&Dv 6 &ufaeUwGif 'g½dkufwmtzGJUrS twnfjyKcJhygonf/ xdktjyif ,if;tpk½S,f,mtopfrsm;onf 2002-2003 b@mESpftwGuf 

cGJa0aom tjrwfa0pkrsm;udk cHpm;cGifhr½SdaMumif; tjyeftvSef oabmwlnDcJhMuygonf/ þaqmif½GufcsufwpfckvHk;rS ukrÜPD\ rwnf&if;ESD;aiG usyf 10 

bDvD,Hausmf wdk;yGm;vmonfhtwGuf ukrÜPD\&nfrSef;csufjzpfaom 300% BuD;xGm;a&;udk yxrESpftwGif; aqmif½GufEdkifcJhygonf/

þb@mESpfrukefrSD wpfvwGifjzpfay:cJhonfh aemufxyfxl;jcm;jzpf&yfwpfckrSm yk*¾vdubPfrsm;\ aiGom;vnfywfrItcuftcJudk 

azazmf0g&Dvv,fcefUwGif BuHKawGU&jcif;jzpfygonf/ yk*¾vdubPfBuD;wpfckwGif pwifjzpfay:cJhaom aiGyrmPtajrmuftrsm;xkwf,ljcif;onf tjcm;bPf 

toD;oD;odkU ul;pufoGm;NyD;? bPfrSxkwfacs;ay;Edkifonfh yrmPavsmhusrIonf 1988 ckESpf aps;uGufpD;yGm;a&;pwifcsdefrS ,cktcsdefxd yxrOD;qHk;aom 

&ifqdkif&onfh aiGaMu;tcuftcJjzpfonf/ yk*¾vdubPfrsm;wGif 'kwd,tBuD;qHk;jzpfaom ½dk;rbPfonfvnf; þtcuftcJESifh rvGJraoG awGUMuHK 

&ifqdkif&ygonf/ ,cktcsdefwGiff yk*¾vdubPfrsm;onf bPfvkyfief;pepfudk jyefvnfwnfaqmufaeqJjzpfNyD;? þtcuftcJrsm;udk ausmfvGefí yHkrSef 

tajctaetwdkif; tjrefqHk;jyefvnf&½SdEdkif&ef BudK;pm;aeygonf/

uHaumif;axmufrpGmjzifh ukrÜPDrS &if;ESD;jr§KyfESHxm;aom vkyfief;cGJtrsm;pkrSm þtcuftcJaMumifh  xdcdkufqHk;½IH;rI r&SdcJhyg/ odkUaomf tcsdKUaom 

vkyfief;rsm;onf bPf\acs;aiGudk rSDcdkívnfywf&aomaMumifh vmrnfhESpfwGif þvkyfief;rsm;onf xdcdkufrI&Sdayvdrfhrnf/ 2002-2003 ckESpfwGif 

þuJhodkUaom tcuftcJ tajctaersm;udk &ifqdkifausmfvTm;EdkifcJhaMumif; 0rf;omp&mtjzpf wifjyvdkNyD;? xdkUtwl vmrnfh 2003-2004 ckESpfwGifvnf; 

tvm;wl aqmif&GufEdkifvdrfhrnf[k cH,lxm;ygonf/ þuJhodkU aqmif&GufEdkifjcif;rSm vkyfief;rsm;wGif jzefUusuf&if;ESD;jr§KyfESHcJhonfhtjyif? t"dutm;jzifh 

refae*smrsm;ESifh 0efxrf;rsm;\ opöm&SdrI? BudK;pm;tm;xkwfrIrsm;aMumifhom jzpfygonf/

10



av;pm;tyfygaom tpk½S,f,m½Sifrsm;cifAsm;

FMI ukrÜPD\ yxr 10-ESpfumvausmfvGefNyD;aemuf yxrOD;qHk;tBudrf tpD&ifcH&mrSm tpk½S,f,m½Sifrsm;tm;vHk;udk usef;rmcsrf;omí 

aysmf&TifrItaygif; canmif;ygapaMumif; a&S;OD;pGmqkawmif;arwÅmydkUotyfygonf/ uRefawmfwdkUEdkifiHtygt0if a'owpfckvHk;ü pD;yGm;a&;tMuyf 

twnf;rsm;udk &ifqdkifae&aomfvnf; FMI ukrÜPDtaeESifh tm;&zG,faumif;atmifjrwfpGef;cJhNyD;? tjrwfa0pkudk ,cifESpfuxuf ydkrdkcGJa0ay;Edkifygonf/

FMI \t"dutm;omcsufrSm vkyfief;trsKd;rsKd;wGif jzefUusuf&if;ESD;jr§KyfESHxm;jcif;ESifh &if;ESD;jr§KyfESHrItrsm;pkrSm tjyeftvSef tusKd;jyKEdkifpGrf;½Sdjcif; 

jzpfygonf/ xdkaMumifh 2003 ckESpf rwfv 31 &ufaeUwGifukefqHk;aom b@mESpftwGuf pkpkaygif;0ifaiGonf usyf 1,345 oef;jzpfí (,cifESpf0ifaiGrSm - 

usyf 473 oef;) ,cifESpfxuf 185% wdk;wufrI&SdcJhygonf/ xdkUaMumifh tom;wiftjrwfaiGrSmvnf; ,cifESpfxuf 259% wdk;í oef;aygif;wpfaxmif 

ausmfcJhNyD; 1,078,291,238.23 (,cifESpftjrwfrSm usyf 308,526,400) &&SdcJhygonf/ þuJhodkU 0ifaiGwdk;wufvmjcif;onf vGefcJhonfhESpf ESpfywfvnf 

tpnf;ta0;wGif wifjycJhaom 5-ESpfpDrHudef;\ aumif;aomtpyifjzpfygonf/

      'g½dkufwmtzGJUrS ,ckESpf\tjrwfa0pkudk ,cifESpfuxuf 14% ydkrdkNyD; wpfpkvQif usyf 4,000 (,cifESpfuwpfpkvQif usyf 3,500) ay;&ef 

tqdkjyKxm;&m? tpk½S,f,m½Sifrsm; axmufcHvdrfhrnf[k ,HkMunfygonf/ vGefcJhonfhESpftwGif; &ifqdkifcJh&onfh pD;yGm;a&; tcuftcJrsm; tMum; FMI 

ukrÜPDtaeESifh tjrwfa0pk ydkrdkcGJa0ay;Edkifjcif;udkvnf; rSwfwrf;wifxdkufygonf/

         

        ,cifESpfrsm;enf;wl tpk½S,f,m½Sifrsm;tm; tjrwfa0pkudk aiGom; (odkUr[kwf) tpk&S,f,mtopf &,lcGifhay;xm;ygonf/ tpk&S,f,mtopf 

&,lvdkolrsm;twGuf (15) pkpm tjrwfa0pktpm; tpk½S,f,mtopf(1) pk &,lcGifhjyK&ef 'g½dkufwmtzGJUrS qHk;jzwfxm;ygonf/ þokdYjzifh tpk&S,f,mtopf 

wpfpkvQif usyf(60,000) wefzdk;oifhNyD;? vGefcJhonfh (3) v twGif;½Sd yQrf;rQaygufaps;  (usyf 70,000) xuf 14% oufomrnf jzpfygonf/

  ,cifESpfrsm;wGif &efukefESifhrEÅav;wdkUwGif &S,f,mta&mif;t0,fXmersm;&SdcJhaomfvnf; 

ta&mif;t0,fjyKEdkifonfh &S,f,mta&twGufrSm vGefpGmenf;yg;cJhygonf/ þtcsufonf 

FMI &S,f,mrsm;\ a&mif;0,fvnfywfrIudk aES;auG;apcJhygonf/ FMI Share Exchange 

Center vkyfief; ydkrdkwGifus,fap&ef tpk&S,f,m&Sifrsm;taeESifh rdrd&&Sdonfh tjrwfa0pk 

&S,f,mtopfudkaomfvnf;aumif;? rlvtpk½S,f,mrsm;udkaomfvnf;aumif; a&mif;csvdkygu 

qufoG,faqmif&Guf&ef wdkufwGef;tyfygonf/ þaqmif&GufrIonf FMI &S,f,mrsm;udk 

aps;uGufwGif rSefrSefa&mif;0,fazmufum;Edkif&ef zefwD;ay;í tpk&S,f,m&Sifrsm;\ a&&Snf 

tusKd;udk ay;aqmifEdkif&ef &nf½G,fygonf/ 

Managing Agent \ tpD&ifcHpm
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 Since February, company wide cost saving measures, including voluntary reduction of salaries were spontaneous and proactive. A 

program of austerity has been implemented with the support of all staff from each and every of the entities. Their deeds are indeed 

heart warming and underscore the strength of our organization.

The overall outlook for the coming year is one of cautious optimism as we face the many challenges both from external political 

factors and economic contraction at home. Despite these challenges I am confident that FMI will be able to overcome these 

temporary challenges and continue to provide an above average return to our shareholders. 

Lastly, I wish to thank all our shareholders for their support and to our Board of Advisors, Board of Directors for providing their 

collective wisdom and constant encouragement.

Yours truly,

Theim Wai @ Serge Pun

Managing Agent

FM I. . . a milestone of success!
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The following pages will report to you the operational status of each entity in which your Company holds an interest. I would 

like to highlight some of the significant events that occurred during the year.

On the corporate side, the more significant event during the past year was your company's ability to acquire substantial 

additional interests in several investment entities, namely:

 a) 44% of FMI Syndication (holding FMI Centre);

 b) 80% of SPA Motorcycle;

 c) 80% of SPA Motors;

 d) 55.3% of Wood Technology Industries; and

 e) 25% of Pun Hlaing International Hospital

Furthermore, your Company added a new investment to our portfolio by acquiring a 25% shareholding in Mandalay Cement 

Industries Company Limited (MCICL), a new cement manufacturing start up concern in Mandalay. MCICL has the capacity to 

produce 90,000 tons of portland cement per annum presently which will be increased to 200,000 tons per annum when a second 

production line is added in the near future. The addition of MCICL to our portfolio will strengthen our position in the industrial and 

manufacturing sector and add a strong and stable income stream to our earnings. 

The above acquisitions were valued at a total of Ks.10,338 million for which your Company paid for by the issuance of 

147,680 new fully-paid shares at an issuing price of Ks. 70,000 each. As the transaction was negotiated during December last year 

and finally approved by the Board on the 6th of February this year, it was mutually agreed that these new shares shall not be entitled 

to any dividends for the fiscal year 2002-2003. The whole exercise effectively increased our shareholders funds and equity to more 

than Ks. 10 billion and fulfilled our corporate goal of growing 300% in the first year of the program.

Another significant event occurred in the penultimate month of the fiscal year. As all of you are aware, the local private banking 

industry encountered a severe liquidity crunch in mid February of this year. A bank run on one of the larger private banks precipitated 

a panic withdrawal of deposits from most private banks and started a credit contraction which has not been experienced hitherto. 

Yoma Bank, as the second largest private bank in terms of deposits and assets was inevitably affected. At the time of this writing, the 

private banking industry is still undergoing reform and it will be several more months before normalcy can be restored.

Fortunately, the majority of the entities in which your Company has an interest fared well and the 

crisis did not affect their performance for the year. However, a number of our entities do rely on the 

bank's financing and so will be affected in the coming year. We are only pleased to report that overall, 

your Company has been able to weather the situation considerably well for fiscal year 2002-2003 and 

trust that we will likewise do well in the present fiscal year 2003-2004. This is attributable to the 

diversity of our investments but more importantly, is due to the dedication and loyalty of our managers 

and employees at large. 
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,ckESpfwGif FMI ukrÜPDonf  þukrÜPDü &S,f,mydkifqdkifrI 55.3% udk usyf 482 oef;jzifh 0,f,lwdk;jrSifhvkdufjcif;jzifh pkpkaygif; 

ydkifqdkifrI 76.7% ½SdoGm;NyD jzpfygonf/

vGefcJhaom (2)ESpfrS tpjyKí a&Topfrif;ukrÜPDESifh Home Improvement Centre wdkYudk WTI tjzpf yl;aygif;zGJUpnf;cJhNyD; tacsmudkif 

puf½Hk (3)vHk;ESifh taxGaxGtvkyf½Hk (1)ckudk wdk;csJUcJhNyD; jzpfygonf/ tqdkyg puf½Hktvkyf½Hkrsm;rS trdk;'dkif;rsm; xkwfvkyf½HkrQru? wHcg;rsm;? 

jyLwif;aygufrsm;? rD;zdkacsmifoHk;bD'dkrsm;ESifh  opfxnfy&dabm*trsdK;trsdK;udk xkwfvkyfay;aeygonf/ vkyfief;\ 0ifaiGvnfywfrIrSmvnf; 

rsm;pGm;wdk;wufcJhNyD;? BuD;rm;onfh vkyfief;rsm;pGmudk atmifjrifpGm vkyfaqmifEdkifcJhygonf/

vGefcJhonfh ESpftwGif; t½Sdeft[kefjzifh wdk;wufBuD;xGm;vmcJhjcif;aMumifh 0efxrf;OD;a&rSm 

(70)OD;rS (250)OD;txd rsm;jym;vmygonf/ xdkBuD;xGm;rIonf tkyfcsKyfa&;ESifh t&nftaoG; 

xdef;odrf;a&; u@rsm;tm; zdtm;ay;apcJhaomfvnf; WTI taejzifh aumif;rGefpGm xdef;odrf;Edkif 

cJhNyD;? vkyfief;rsm;udk tqifajy acsmarGUpGm vnfywfapEdkifcJhygonf/

b@mESpftukefwGif WTI onf tom;wif tjrwfaiGusyf 30 oef; &½SdcJ hygonf/ 

odkYaomfvnf; 4if;aiGudk bPfodkY ta<u;jyefqyf&efESifh aemifESpftwGuf vSnfhvnfaiG&if;tjzpf 

xm;½Sd&ef &nf½G,fí þESpfwGif tjrwfa0pk cGJa0ay;jcif;rjyK[k qHk;jzwfxm;ygonf/ vuf½Sd 

&½SdNyD;om; vkyfief;rsm;ESifh tvm;tvm½Sdaom a½SUwGifvkyfaqmif&rnfh vkyfief;rsm;udk  

Munfhjcif;jzifh þvkyfief;cGJonf ,ckESpfrsm;wGif aumif;rGefpGm qufvufí vnfywfEdkifrnf[k 

,HkMunfygonf/

Manufacturing and Value Added Industry

Your Company increased its shareholding in this entity to 76.7% by acquiring an additional 55.3% during the year for 
a sum of Ks. 482 million.

 Since the merger of Shwe Thit Min Company and Home Improvement Centre to form WTI two years ago, this entity 
has expanded into three production plants and a general workshop producing roof trusses as well as doors, windows, 
interior �xtures such as kitchen cabinets and a variety of wooden furniture. The business turnover of the entity has greatly 
increased and was able to secure numerous large projects.

Rapid expansion and growth resulted in the company augmenting its sta� from 70 sta�s to 250 during the past year. 
Despite the pressure this has brought to management and quality control, WTI was able to handle it very well and 
operations continue to be smooth.

Year end result of WTI showed a net pro�t of Ks. 30 million. However, the entity has decided not to declare a dividend 
for the year in order to be able to utilize the cash to repay its bank borrowings and for working capital in the coming year.  
Based on the contracts on hand and business prospects in view, we are optimistic that this entity will continue to perform 
well in the current year.
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FIRST MYANMAR INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2003

12. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS

Account payable and accruals consist of: 

Kyats

Manager's share of profit (10%) 119,404,284.80
Provision for 2003 AGM expenses 14,000,000.00
Audit fees 125,000.00
Serge Pun & Associates (Myanmar) Ltd 4,590,630.89
Pun Hlaing International Hospital Ltd. (PHIHL) 644,000,000.00
Unclaimed dividends (1997-98 to 2001-2002) 21,284,500.00
Other payable 65,600.00

803,470,015.69

13. DIVIDENDS

The above consist of dividend received /receivable from: 

Kyats

FMI Garden Development Ltd. 696,250,000.00
Yoma Bank Ltd. 106,804,667.00
FMI Syndication Ltd. 168,000,000.00
Myanmar V-Pile Co., Ltd. 78,000,000.00
SPA Motorcycle Ltd. 250,000,000.00
May Enterprise Ltd (SPA Motors) 40,000,000.00
Forest Product Joint Venture Ltd 15,000.00

1,339,069,667.00

14. INTEREST

Interests consist of: 

Kyats

Interest on saving deposit 2,174,404.19
Interest on call deposit 1,287,491.00

3,461,895.19

15. TAXATION

Regarding accounts payable to PHIHL, the Company had committed to acquire US$5,337,500 worth of shares of which a balance 
of US$700,000 remains to be acquired and has been shown as payable at the end of 31-3-2003.  The balance amount has been 
valued at the market rate of K920 per US$.

No provision for Income tax has been made during the year as the Company has no assessable profit, and the dividend income of 
the Company has been already taxed.
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FIRST MYANMAR INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2003

9.  STOCK (K 306,180.00)

The above represents vouchers purchased but not used as yet.

10. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and bank balances consist of: 

Kyats

Cash on hand  (Yangon) 124,171.00
Cash on hand  (Mandalay) 76,949.00
Cash in Bank - Kyats (Note 10-A) 117,000,863.60

                             - US$ 895.49@ K6.143 (MICB) 5,500.00

117,207,483.60

10-A. CASH IN BANK (KYATS)

Cash in bank (Kyats) consist of: 

Kyats

Yoma Bank - Call Deposit 6,542,410.19
- Current deposit 106,804,668.07
- Saving deposit 3,647,681.51

MICB (Yangon) 6,103.83

117,000,863.60

11. SHARE CAPITAL AND CAPITAL RESERVES

During the year, the Company issued 165,526 shares of par value K10,000 each at a premium of K35,000 to K60,000 per share.

The premium of K 9,573,760,000 has been reflected in capital reserve account. The details are as follows: 

Sr. Reserve Per Share Number of Shares Amount

1. K 35,000.00 10,000 350,000,000.00
2. K 46,000.00   7,700 354,200,000.00
3. K 60,000.00 *   147,826       8,869,560,000.00

165,526  9,573,760,000.00
Balance brought forward 100,000  918,867,200.00

265,526  10,492,627,200.00

* Of these shares, 147,680 shares were issued to YGL in exchange for shares held by YGL in FMI Syndication Ltd, SPA Motorcycle 
Ltd, May Enterprise Ltd (SPA Motors), Pun Hlaing International Hospital Ltd, Wood Technology Industries Ltd., and Mandalay 
Cement Industries Co., Ltd. in order to increase the investment of the Company in the said companies.
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FIRST MYANMAR INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2003

6. INVESTMENTS

Details of investments made by the Company based on at cost value of shares are as follows: 

Kyats

(a ) F.M.I Syndication Ltd. 2,749,017,848.00
(b) SPA Motorcycle Ltd. 1,450,123,200.00
(c ) May Enterprise Ltd (SPA Motors) 186,326,400.00
(d) Pun Hlaing International Hospital Ltd. 5,541,490,000.00
(e ) Wood Technology Industries Ltd. 516,276,660.00
(f ) Mandalay Cement Industries Co., Ltd. 1,476,750,000.00
(g) Shine Laundry Ltd. 6,830,000.00
(h) Myanmar Suzuki Motor Co., Ltd. 114,764,108.00
(i ) F.M.I Garden Development Ltd. 122,450,000.00
(j ) Myanmar Nissan Co., Ltd. 7,812,499.80
(k ) Yoma Bank Ltd. 1,638,116,548.00
(l ) SPA Elevator 3,000,000.00
(m) Bago Yoma Co., Ltd. 3,400,000.00
(n) Myanmar V-Pile Co., Ltd. 63,000,000.00
(o ) Forest Product Joint Venture Ltd. 75,000.00

13,879,432,263.80

The investments made in the companies listed from (a) to (f) include additional investments through Yangon Land Co., Ltd. (YGL)

by issuing 147,680 shares valued at K 10,337,600,000.00 in exchange for YGL's shares valued at K 10,337,665,600.00 in the said

companies. The shortfall of K 65,600.00 is payable by the Company in cash to YGL.

7. PREPAYMENT

Prepayment consist of: 
Kyats

Office rental (Mandalay) 5,100,000.00
Advertising 263,680.00

5,363,680.00

8. DEBTORS AND RECEIVABLES

Debtors and receivables consist of: 
Kyats

Dividend from FMI Syndication Ltd. 168,000,000.00
Dividend from FMI Garden Development Ltd. 696,250,000.00
Dividend from Myanmar V-Pile Co.,Ltd. 78,000,000.00
Dividend from  SPA Motorcycle Ltd. 250,000,000.00
Dividend from May Enterprise Ltd. (SPA Motors) 40,000,000.00

  1,232,250,000.00

43



FIRST MYANMAR INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2003

4. RENOVATION COST

The details are as follows:

Renovation cost 8,938,669.00
Less: Amortization 744,889.10

8,193,779.90

5. FIXED ASSETS

The details are as follows:

Office Equipment Furniture Motor-Cycle Total
 Kyats Kyats Kyats Kyats
COSTS    

Balance brought forward 4,346,778.48 _ _ 4,346,778.48
Additions 862,000.00 759,500.00 318,500.00 1,940,000.00
Disposal _ _ _ _

5,208,778.48 759,500.00 318,500.00 6,286,778.48
    
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION    

Balance brought forward 1,354,220.57 _ _ 1,354,220.57
Charges for this year 828,152.91 36,460.44 42,466.66 907,080.01

Balance carried forward 2,182,373.48 36,460.44 42,466.66 2,261,300.58

Net book value as at 31-3-2003 3,026,405.00 723,039.56 276,033.34 4,025,477.90

Net book value as at 31-3-2002 2,992,557.91 _ _ 2,992,557.91
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FIRST MYANMAR INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2003

1. GENERAL

First Myanmar Investment Company Limited,(the Company) is a public company limited by shares and incorporated in the Union 

of Myanmar under The Myanmar Companies Act, the date of incorporation being July 3, 1992. The Company has received the 

Certificate for Commencement of Business dated October 30, 1992 issued by the Ministry of Trade.

The Company is mainly engaged in investment holding by purchasing shares in other companies and receiving dividend income 

from the investments.

The Mandalay branch office was opened in March 2002

The Company raised its authorised capital from Ks 1,000 million to Ks 3,000 million during the year.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying balance sheet has been prepared based on Form F of The Myanmar Companies Act so as to conform with the 

provisions of Section 132 of the Act.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Myanmar Accounting Standards and are based on the historical 

cost convention.

(b) DEFERRED EXPENSES (AMORTIZATION)

The above represents expenses incurred on the renovation of office building at the Mandalay Branch Office.  According to the 

decision made in the Board of Directors' meeting, the deferred expenses are to be amortized in five years commencing from 

November 2002.

(c) FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets are stated at cost.

(d) DEPRECIATION ON FIXED ASSETS

Depreciation on assets has been written off on monthly basis commencing from the month of purchase on straight line method 

at the rates prescribed by the Internal Revenue Department.
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Cash flow from operating activities  
Net profit before taxation and extraordinary items 1,074,638,563.23
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by:   

Depreciation 907,080.01
Amortization 744,889.10
Interest income (3,461,895.19)
Interest expenses 57,603,448.47

Operating profit before working capital changes 1,130,432,085.62
Working capital changes  

Increase in receivables (765,293,680.00)
Increase in inventory (306,180.00)
Decrease in payables (109,071,460.62)

Cash generated from operation 255,760,765.00
Interest paid (57,603,448.47)

Net cash from operating activities 198,157,316.53
  
Cash flow from investing activities  
Acquisition of new shares (10,961,790,600.00)
Purchase of fixed assets (1,940,000.00)
Renovation cost (8,938,669.00)
Interest received 3,461,895.19

Net cash from investing activities (10,969,207,373.81)
  
Cash flow from financing activities  
Proceed from issue of share capital 11,229,020,000.00
Repayment of long-term borrowing (209,378,400.00)
Dividend paid (298,438,000.00)

Net cash from financing activities 10,721,203,600.00
  
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (49,846,457.28)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 167,053,940.88

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 117,207,483.60

Authenticated by Directors:

.................................................... ...................................................
(Director) (Director)

U Soe Win U Kyaw Paing
Director (Board Secretary) Managing Director

First Myanmar Investment Co., Ltd. First Myanmar Investment Co., Ltd.

FIRST MYANMAR INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

2. CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2003
Currency - Myanmar Kyats
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FIRST MYANMAR INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2003
Currency - Myanmar Kyats

Share Capital Capital Reserve Accumulated Profit Total

Balance at March 31, 2001 693,000,000.00 221,035,200.00 26,150,921.23 940,186,121.23
Net profit for the year (2001-2002) _ _ 308,526,400.05 308,526,400.05
Prior year adjustment _ _ 1,655,765.00 1,655,765.00
Dividends _ _ (305,550,000.00) (305,550,000.00)
Issue of share capital 307,000,000.00 697,832,000.00 _ 1,004,832,000.00

Balance at March 31, 2002 1,000,000,000.00 918,867,200.00 30,783,086.28 1,949,650,286.28
Net profit for the year  (2002-2003) _ _ 1,078,291,238.23 1,078,291,238.23
Prior year adjustment _ _ (3,652,675.00) (3,652,675.00)
Dividends _ _ (470,800,000.00) (470,800,000.00)
Issue of share capital 1,655,260,000.00 9,573,760,000.00 _ 11,229,020,000.00

Balance at March 31, 2003 2,655,260,000.00 10,492,627,200.00 634,621,649.51 13,782,508,849.51

Authenticated by Directors:

.................................................... ...................................................
(Director) (Director)

U Soe Win U Kyaw Paing
Director (Board Secretary) Managing Director

First Myanmar Investment Co., Ltd. First Myanmar Investment Co., Ltd.
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Notes Current Year Previous Year
Kyats Kyats

INCOME
Dividends 13 1,339,069,667.00 467,641,493.00
Interest 14 3,461,895.19 4,400,293.56
Commission on transfer of shares 2,639,120.00 1,012,505.00

1,345,170,682.19 473,054,291.56
    
EXPENDITURES    

Administrative expenses 16 209,272,260.49 107,333,092.17
Financial expenses 17 57,607,183.47 55,966,804.34

266,879,443.96 163,299,896.51

1,078,291,238.23 309,754,395.05
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS _ (1,227,995.00)

PROFIT FOR THE  YEAR 1,078,291,238.23 308,526,400.05
    

APPROPRIATION ACCOUNT    
Profit for the year 1,078,291,238.23 308,526,400.05
Retained earning brought forward 30,783,086.28 26,150,921.23
Prior year adjustment 18 (3,652,675.00) 1,655,765.00

Retained earning available for distribution 1,105,421,649.51 336,333,086.28
Proposed dividends 19 470,800,000.00 305,550,000.00

Retained earning carried forward 634,621,649.51 30,783,086.28

Authenticated by Directors:

.................................................... ...................................................
(Director) (Director)

U Soe Win U Kyaw Paing
Director (Board Secretary) Managing Director

First Myanmar Investment Co., Ltd. First Myanmar Investment Co., Ltd.

FIRST MYANMAR INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2003
Currency - Myanmar Kyats
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FIRST MYANMAR INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

1. BALANCE SHEET
MARCH 31, 2003
Currency - Myanmar Kyats

Notes Current Year Previous Year
Kyats Kyats

PROPERTY AND ASSETS

DEFERRED EXPENSES    
Renovation Cost 4 8,193,779.90 _
FIXED ASSETS 5 4,025,477.90 2,992,557.91
INVESTMENTS AT COST 6 13,879,432,263.80  2,489,433,363.80
CURRENT ASSETS    

Prepayment 7 5,363,680.00 6,900,000.00
Debtors and receivables 8 1,232,250,000.00 465,420,000.00
Stock 9 306,180.00 _
Cash and bank balances 10 117,207,483.60 167,053,940.88

15,246,778,865.20 3,131,799,862.59
    
CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES    
    
AUTHORIZED CAPITAL     

300,000 ordinary shares of 
K 10,000 each 3,000,000,000.00 1,000,000,000.00

ISSUED AND PAID UP CAPITAL    
265,526 ordinary shares of K 10,000
each, fully paid up 2,655,260,000.00 1,000,000,000.00

RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS    
Capital reserve 11 10,492,627,200.00 918,867,200.00
Retained earnings 634,621,649.51 30,783,086.28

CURRENT LIABILITIES     
Bank loan 190,000,000.00 399,378,400.00
Proposed dividend 470,800,000.00 305,550,000.00
Accounts payable and accruals 12 803,470,015.69 477,221,176.31

15,246,778,865.20 3,131,799,862.59

Authenticated by Directors:

.................................................... ...................................................
(Director) (Director)

U Soe Win U Kyaw Paing
Director (Board Secretary) Managing Director

First Myanmar Investment Co., Ltd. First Myanmar Investment Co., Ltd.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

The Board of Directors
First Myanmar Investment Company Limited

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of First Myanmar Investment Company Limited as of March 31, 2003 and the 

related pro�t and loss account for the year then ended.  These �nancial statements are the responsibility of the Company's 

management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these �nancial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices.  Those practices require that we plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the �nancial statements are free of material misstatement.  An 

audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the �nancial statements.  An audit 

also includes assessing the accounting principles used and signi�cant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 

overall �nancial statement presentation.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In accordance with Section 145 of The Myanmar Companies Act we report that we have obtained all the information and 

explanations we have required with the exception of share market reports, audited �nancial statements and valuation reports by 

Certi�ed Public Accountants of all the respective companies and also share certi�cates for investments in (d, h & l) disclosed in 

Note (6) of the �nancial statements.

In our opinion, except for any adjustments (or) disclosures if any, as might have been determined to be necessary, had we been 

able to obtain the documents stated above, the Company's accounts and statements are properly drawn up in accordance with 

the provisions of The Myanmar Companies Act and Myanmar Accounting Standards so as to exhibit a true and correct view, of the 

state of a�airs of the Company as of March 31, 2003, and of its operating results for the year ended on that date, according to the 

best of our information and explanations given to us and as shown by the books of the Company, which have been maintained in 

accordance with Section 130 of the Act.

U Win Thin, B.Com., B.L., R.A.
WIN THIN & ASSOCIATES,
AUDITORS.
August 8, 2003

Head O�ce:

No.121, Latha Street, (2nd & 3rd Floor)

Latha Township, Yangon, Myanmar.

Mandalay Branch O�ce:

Room 9/10, East Wing of Bahtoo Stadium,

70th Street (Between 29th & 30th Street),

Mandalay, Myanmar.

Yangon 246329, 250978, 253949, 09-25912, Fax: 95-1-287421 Mandalay 02-34451, Fax:02-34498

Ref: 223/F-7/2002-2003
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Trading and Distribution

Your company continues to hold a 20% interest in this entity. As exclusive sales agent for Mitsubishi lifts and 

escalators in Myanmar, SPA Elevators continues to focus on the quality end of the elevator market.

Apart from sales and installation of elevators, SPA Elevators provides annual maintenance contracts and derives 

regular income from such services.

After finishing its last project at Pacific Hotel in Mandalay during March, this company has procured several new 

projects for the coming year. These include a contract to supply and install a minimum of 3 to a maximum of 8 

elevators at Evergreen Condominiums and a Memorandum of Understanding entered with a major high-rise 

development in Yangon for the supply and installation of a multiple number of elevators.

For the year ending March 2003, this entity had a net profit Ks. 6 million. No dividend was declared for the 

year.

With the unique engineering support from Mitsubishi and comprehensive maintenance services provided by our 

seasoned local team, we are confident that this entity shall continue to maintain its excellent reputation and presence 

in the market.

oifhukrÜPDtaejzifh þvkyfief;cGJtm; 20% qufvufydkifqdkifxm;&Sdygonf/ rpfqlbD½SD"mwfavSum;ESifh pufavSum;rsm;\ 

wpfOD;wnf;aom ta&mif;udk,fpm;vS,ftjzpf SPA Elevators onf "mwfavSum;aps;uGuftwGuf t&nftaoG;udk xdyfwef; 

xm;vsuf qufvufvkyfudkifvsuf &Sdygonf/

"mwfavSum;rsm; a&mif;csjcif;ESifh wyfqifjcif;wdkYtjyif SPA Elevators onf wpfESpfwm jyKjyifxdrf;odrf;rIvkyfief;rsm; 

vkyfudkifvsuf ½SdNyD;? 4if;0efaqmifrIrsm;u yHkrSef0ifaiGudk &½Sdapygonf/

rwfvwGif tNyD;owfcJhaom aemufqHk; vkyfief;jzpfonfh rEÅav;NrdKU? ypdzdwf[dkw,f NyD;qHk;onfh aemufydkif;wGif 

a½SUvmrnfhESpftwGuf vkyfief;opfrsm; &½SdvmcJhygonf/ þ&½SdcJhonfh vkyfief;rsm;wGif "mwfavSum; tenf;qHk; (3)pif;rS? trsm;qHk;

(8)pif;txd wifqifay;&rnfh tJAm;*&if;uGef'dkrDeD,Hrsm; yg0ifygonf/ xdkYtjyif &efukefNrdKU\ 

t"duusaom rdk;arQmfwdkufrsm; aqmufvkyfrnfh vkyfief;rsm;wGifvnf; "mwfavSum;rsm; wyfqif 

a&mif;csay;&ef em;vnfrI a&;xdk;xm;NyD;jzpfygonf/

þvkyfief;cGJonf 2003ckESpf? rwfvwGif ukefqHk;aom b@mESpftwGuf tom;wif 

tjrwfaiGusyf 6oef; &½SdcJhygonf/ þESpftwGuf tjrwfa0pk cGJa0Edkifjcif; r½Sdyg/

rpfqlbD½SD\ enf;ynmyHhydk;rI?  tawGUtBuHK&ifhusufaom jynfwGif;tzGJU\ jyKjyifxdef;odrf;rI 

vkyfief;rsm;aMumifh þvkyfief;cGJ taejzifh tem*wfwGif 4if;\ aumif;rGefaom *kPfowif;udk 

qufvuf xdef;odrf;EdkifNyD;? aps;uGufwGif qufvufwnf&Sdaernf[k ,HkMunfygonf/

Change better tomorrow

MITSUBSHI Lift and Elevators
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þvkyfief;onf vGefcJhonfhESpftwGif; FMI ukrÜPDü yg0ifvmaom &if;ESD;jrSKyfEHSrItopfwpfckjzpfonf/ &if;ESD;jrSKyfESHrI 

trsdK;tpm;t& pufrI^ukefxkwfvkyfrIvkyfief; trsdK;tpm;jzpfNyD;? &if;ESD;jrSKyfESHrI obm0t& ESpfvwfrSESpf&Snf&if;ESD;jrSKyfESHrIrsdK;jzpfygonf/

Mandalay Cement Industries Co., Ltd. (MCICL) onf jrefrmh&if;ESD;jrSKyfESHrIaumfr½Sif\ cGifhjyKrdefUjzifh wnfaxmifcJhygonf/ 

puf½HkrSm rEÅav;wdkif;? ykodrfBuD;NrdKUe,f? qnfawmfBuD;aus;&Gm? &efukef-jyifOD;vGif ta0;ajy;vrf;wGifwnf½SdNyD; ukefMurf;rsm;&½Sd&mae&mESifh 

uyfvsufwnf½Sdygonf/

puf½Hk{&d,mtus,ft0ef; pkpkaygif; 35.26 {u½SdNyD;? ¤if;\ xuf0ufcefY yrmPrSm pDrHudef;tqifh(1) tjzpf azmfaqmifxm; 

ygonf/ þpDrHudef;tqifh(1)wGif xkwfvkyfa&;vrf;aMumif; (Production Line) wpfckyg0ifNyD;? xkwfvkyfEdkifpGrf;rSm wpfESpfvQif wefcsdef 

90ç000 jzpfygonf/ þacwfrDpuf½HkwGif tqifh(5)qifhyg tqifhqifhtylwdkuf tajcmufcH enf;vrf;udk toHk;jyKxm;NyD;? þpepfonf 

oufqdkif&mtmPmydkifrsm;rS ywf0ef;usifnpfnrf;rI r½Sdap&ef csrSwfxm;aom pnf;rsOf;pnf;urf;rsm;ESifhtnD jzpfygonf/

,cktcsdefwGif pufypönf;rsm; wyfqifjcif;? prf;oyfjcif;ESifh pwifvnfywfjcif; vkyfief;rsm; NyD;pD;oGm;NyD jzpfonfhtwGuf 

2003ckESpf Mo*kwfvrSpwifí ukefxkwfvkyfjcif; pwif&ef pDpOfxm;ygonf/

ukefxkwfvkyfrI pwifí rsm;rMumrDrSmyif pDrHudef;tqifh(2)udk qufvuftaumiftxnfazmfrnf jzpfygonf/ þtqifhwGif 

ukefxkwfrIpGrf;tm; vdkufavsmnDaxG jzpfap&ef? vuf½Sd ½SdNyD;om;zdkrsm;udk yHkpHjyefcsjcif;ESifh tqifhjrSifhjcif; ponfwdkYudk yg0ifaprnfjzpfonf/ 

xdktqifhudk taumiftxnfazmfEdkif&ef xyfrHvdktyfrnfh b@maiGudk vuf½Sdtpk½S,f,m½Sifrsm;xHrSvnf;aumif;? odk Yr[kwf 

tpk½S,f,m½Siftopfrsm;xHrSvnf;aumif; &,lrnf jzpfonf/

ukrÜPD\ aemufqHk;pDrHudef;rSm pDrHudef;tqifh(3) jzpfonf/ þtqifhwGif vkyfief;pDrHcsufwGif azmfjyxm;onfhtwdkif; 

toifhavsmfqHk; xkwfvkyfEdkifpGrf; &½Sda&;twGuf 'kwd,xkwfvkyfa&;vrf;aMumif;  (Production Line) wnfaqmufrnf jzpfonf/ 

þtqifhudk vuf½Sdxkwfvkyfa&;ESifh jzefYcsda&;rsm; tqifajyacsmarGUpGmvnfywfEdkifonfh tajctae&½SdNyD;jzpfrnfh vmrnfh b@mESpfwGif 

aqmif½Guf&ef vsmxm;ygonf/

þukrÜPDrS xkwfvkyfonfh bdvyfajr\ trSwfwHqdyfrSm ]]jrefrmqif}} wHqdyfjzpfNyD;? rMumrDwGif aps;uGufwGif rMumcP 

jrifawGU&rnfh ypönf;wpfck jzpfygonf/

ukrÜPDtaejzifh vuf½Sdtcsdeftxd pDrHudef;tqifh(1)twGuf &if;ESD;jrSKyfESHrIESifh vkyfief;vnfywfaiGtygt0if usyfaiG (5)bDvD,H 

cefY&SdNyD;? pDrHudef;tqifhtm;vHk;twGufqdkygu &if;ESD;aiGyrmP usyfaiG (10)bDvD,H &Sdrnfjzpfygonf/ 2003 rwfvwGif FMI ukrÜPDtaeESifh 

tqdkygvkyfief;\ 25%twGuf usyfaiG 1ç476.75 oef; &if;ESD;jrSKyfESHrI xnfh0ifxm;NyD;? ¤if;\ Ouú|jzpfaom OD;atmif0if;cdkif\ 

OD;aqmifrIESifhtwl ukrÜPDtkyfcsKyfa&;wGif wuf<upGm yg0ifaqmif½Gufvsuf&Sdonf/ OD;atmif0if;cdkifonf FMI ukrÜPD\ 'kwd,Ouú|jzpfNyD;? 

t"duusaom tpk½S,f,m&SifwpfOD;vnf; jzpfygonf/

bdvyfajronf taqmuftODrsm;aqmufvkyf&mü tajccHtusqHk;ESif htvdktyfqHk;t&mjzpfNyD;? a&SUvmrnfhESpfrsm;wGif 

aps;uGuf0,fvdktm; jrifhrm;pGm&Sdrnf[k ,HkMunfygonf/ oifhukrÜPDtaejzifhvnf; þodkYaomvkyfief;e,fy,fopfodkY wdk;csJU0ifa&mufEdkifonfh 

twGuf rsm;pGm ESpfaxmif;tm;&rI½SdygaMumif; azmfjytyfygonf/

Mandalay Cement Industries Company Limited (MCICL)
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Manufacturing and Value Added Industry

Mandalay Cement Industries Company Limited

This is a new investment added to the investment portfolio of your Company during the year. In terms of investment 

category it falls in the industrial/manufacturing sector; in terms of investment nature it falls in the medium to long term 

category.

Mandalay Cement Industries Co., Ltd. (MCICL) has been incorporated under the auspices of the Myanmar 

Investment Commission.  The plant is located at Se-Daw-Gyi village of Pathein Gyi township in Mandalay Division, along 

the Mandalay - Pyin-Oo-Lwin highway and is adjacent to our lime stone raw material source. 

The plant covers a site area of 35.26 acres about half of which is currently being utilized for Phase I of the 

development. This phase consist of one production line capable of producing 90,000 tons per year (tpy). This modern 

plant applies a 5-stage pre-heater dry processing method and complies with standard environmental protection regulations 

as laid down by the relevant government authority. 

The installation of machinery, testing and commissioning is now complete and production is scheduled to commence 

in August 2003. 

Shortly after the commencement of production, the company plans to advance to Phase II. This phase comprise of 

remodeling and upgrading of an existing vertical kiln facility to augment our production capacity. The company shall raise 

additional funds either from existing shareholders or new shareholders to do this.

The ultimate plan for the company is to carry out Phase III of the development which calls for the installation of a 

second production line thereby reaching its optimum production output stated in its business plan. This is earmarked for 

the next fiscal year after the existing production and distribution achieves smooth and satisfactory operation results. 

The brand of Portland cement produced by the company is "Myanmar Elephant", a product that you will no doubt 

see frequently in the market in the future. 

The company has so far invested approximately Ks. 5 billion for Phase I and working capital and intend to invest up 

to Ks. 10 billion for the completion of all phases. As at March 2003, your Company has invested Ks. 1,476.75 million for 

a 25% stake in this company and participates actively in the management of the company under the leadership of its 

chairman U Aung Win Khine, who is also a substantial shareholder and Vice Chairman of FMI. 

We are pleased that your Company has been able to participate in this venture as we believe cement being an 

essential and basic building material will be in high demand for many years to come.
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Myanmar V-Pile Company Limited

FMI onf þukrÜPD\ 15%udk qufvuf ydkifqdkifvsuf&Sdygonf/ þukrÜPDwGif vkyfief;cGJaygif; av;ck½Sdygonf/ 4if;wdkYrSm 

Yangon Sand Industries Ltd., Myanmar Concrete Industries Ltd., Chinthe Concrete Co., Ltd ESifh Myanmar V-Pile 

Construction wdkYjzpfMuNyD; ukrÜPDvkyfief;rsm; jzpfaom oJESifhywfoufaom ypönf;rsm;? yHkoGif;ypönf;rsm;? yHkavmif;xm;onfh uGefu&pf 

ausmufwdkifrsm;? toifha&mpyfNyD; uGefu&pfrsm;? toifhyHkoGif;NyD; ajray:taqmufttHkwnfaqmufjcif; vkyfief;rsm;udk twlvufwGJí 

aqmif½Gufvsuf½Sdygonf/

þESpftwGif;? Myanmar V-Pile tkyfcsKyfrItzGJUonf tkwfjrpfwnfaqmufa&; vkyfief;udkom t"duxm; vkyfaqmifoGm;&ef 

qHk;jzwfcJhygonf/ þodkYjzpfvmEdkif&eftwGuf vuf½Sd V-Pile pepfwGif Bore Pile pepf xyfrHjznfhwif;NyD;? [kduf'a&mvpfpepf jyKjyifa&; 

tvkyf½Hkudkvnf; a½SUvmrnhf b@mESpfwGif taumiftxnf azmfEdkif&ef pDpOfxm;ygonf/ þvkyfief;cGJ 'g½dkufwmtzGJUuvnf; ,cif 

Myanmar V-Pile Construction tzGJUvkyfaqmifcJhaom ajray:taqmufttHkwnfaqmufjcif;vkyfief;rsm;udk avQmhcsNyD;? usefvkyfief; 

rsm;wGif t"du tm;pdkufí tatmifjrifqHk;jzpfatmif vkyfaqmif&ef qHk;jzwfcJhygonf/

Myanmar V-Pile onf tjrwfcGefaqmifNyD; tom;wiftjrwfaiG pkpkaygif; usyf 534.39 oef; (,refESpf 70.32 oef;) 

&½SdcJhonfudk Munfhjcif;jzifh ¤if;\ vkyfaqmifrIrsm;onf tvGefaumif;rGefaMumif; od½SdEdkifygonf/ tjrwfa0pk usyf 520 oef; (,refESpf 60 

oef;) udk cGJa0ay;EdkifcJhNyD;? ,if;teuf FMI ukrÜPD\ &S,f,ma0pk &aiGrSm usyf 78 oef; jzpfygonf/ xdktcsufudk Munfhygu 

vnfywfaiGESifh tjrwfaiG wdk;yGm;rIrS (7)q? (8)qcefY½SdNyD;? tjrwfa0pk cGJa0EdkifrIudkvnf; wdk;yGm;vmonfhtwGuf? þukrÜPD atmifjrifpGm 

vkyfudkifvsuf½SdaMumif; &Sif;vif;pGm od½SdEdkifonfhtjyif aps;uGufwGifvnf; twdkif;twm wpfckxd vTrf;rdk;xm;EdkifaMumif; od½SdEdkifygonf/

vGefcJhonfh ESpftenf;i,ftwGif;rS tpjyKí? NrdKUawmfwGif; rdk;arQmfwdkufrsm;ESifh tdrf,mpDrHudef;rsm; rsm;pGm ay:xGef;vmcJhjcif;onf 

þvkyfief;cGJ\ a½SUa&;tm; rsm;pGmcdkifrmapygonf/ Myanmar V-Pile Group onf 4if;\ vkyfief;e,fy,ftwGif; atmifjrifrIrsm; 

qufvuf&½Sdaernf[k ,HkMunfNyD;? FMI ukrÜPDodkYvnf; xl;jcm;onfh &vm'faumif;rsm; qufvufay;tyfEdkifvdrfhrnf[k ,HkMunfygaMumif; 

wifjytyfygonf/
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Myanmar V-Pile Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and Value Added

Your company continues to hold 15% interest in this company. The company's four subsidiaries namely, Yangon 

Sand Industries Limited; Myanmar Concrete Industries Ltd; Chinthe Concrete Co., Ltd. and Myanmar V-Pile 

Construction, added synergy to the company's mainstream business by providing sand and aggregates; precast, pre-

stressed concrete products; ready-mix concrete and prefabricated superstructure construction respectively.

During the year, the management of Myanmar V-Pile decided to focus on becoming a specialist company in 

foundations and substructure construction. This will be achieved by adding bore pile capability to the present V-Pile 

systems and the setting up of a hydraulic systems workshop in the following fiscal year. The Board of this entity also 

decided to decrease the amount of superstructure construction works previously undertaken by Myanmar V-Pile 

Construction so as to remain focused and specialized. 

Myanmar V-Pile had an outstanding performance for the year with consolidated net profits after tax of Ks. 534.39 

million (last year: Ks. 70.32 million). The company distributed a dividend of Ks. 520 million (last year: Ks. 60 million) 

from which your Company's share of the dividend was Ks. 78 million. This phenomenon growth of 7-8 times in turnover 

and profits - and in dividend payments - clearly depicts the success it has had in capturing a sizable share of the market.  

With the increased real estate development activities  in the city, particularly high rise buildings being planned for 

the coming few years, the outlook for this entity is highly positive.  We are confident that Myanmar V-Pile Group will 

rise to the next plateau of  achievement in its industry and will continue to provide good returns to the Company.
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cGJpdwfaqmifMuD; 4aqmif

aeYcGJpdwfjcif;

udk,fwGif;MunfhrSefajymif;ppfaq;a&; tcef;(2)cef;

cGJpdwfjyD;vlemxm;&ef tcef;(9)cef;

pufud&d,mESifhtcsdefjynfhMuyfrwfrIxm;½Sdaomtcef;(9)cef;
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þ&if;ESD;jr§KyfESHrIonf vlrIa&;ESifhpD;yGm;a&;t& aemifvmrnfh 

ESpfrsm;wGiftusdK;tjrwfrsm;pGm &½SdEdkifrnf[kjrifygonf/ 



yef;vdIiftjynfjynfqdkif&maq;½kH (PHIH)

,ckESpfwGif ukrÜPD\t"duqHk;jzwfcsufrsm;teufwpf&yftjzpf yef;vdIifaq;½HkydkifqdkifrIudk 10%rS 35%odkY usyf 4ç991 oef; 

xnfh0ifí wdk;jr§ifhvdkufjcif;yifjzpfygonf/ 'g½dkufwmtzGJUtaeESifhþpDrHudef;tm;aumif;rGefaompDrHudef;wpfcktjzpf ½IjrifNyD;? aemifvmrnfh 

ESpfrsm;wGifukrÜPDDudk 0ifaiGrSefrSefay;Edkifrnfh &if;ESD;jr§KyfESHrIwpfckjzpfaomaMumifh þvkyfief;wGif &if;ESD;jr§KyfESHrIwdk;jr§ifhcJhjcif; jzpfygonf/

aqmufvkyfa&;tpDtpOfrsm;onf vsmxm;aomtcsdefxuf (6)vcefY aemufusaeaomfvnf; vkyfief;rsm;qufvufvkyfaqmif 

aeygonf/ ajray:taqmuftODrSm 100% jyD;ajrmufí? ,ck-a&rD;tpDtpOfrsm;? avat;puf? ukoa&;qdkif&maq;aiGYrsm;? 

tnpftaMu;pGefYypfrIqdkif&mpufud&d,m? tvkyf½Hkrsm;ESifh tjcm;taqmuftODqdkif&m taxmuftulpepfrsm;udk qufvufaqmif½Guf 

aeygonf/ aq;zufqdkif&mud&d,mrsm;udkvnf; 0,f,l&efpDpOfjyD;jzpf&m ,ckESpftukefwGif aq;½HkodkYtjyD;ydkYaqmif&ef pDpOfxm;ygonf/ 

2003ckESpf? azaz:0g&D 24&ufaeUu yef;vdIiftjynfjynfqdkif&maq;½HkESifh xdkif;EdkifiHrS Bumrungrad Hospital International 

aq;½Hku tkyfcsKyfrIqdkif&m0efaqmifrIrsm;udk (6)ESpfMumumvtxdyHhydkk;ay;&ef? ESpfOD;oabmwlpmcsKyf csKyfqdkcJhygonf/ ,cktcsdefwGif 

befaumufjrdKU½Sd Bumrungrad aq;½Hkonf tm½SwpfcGifwGif tqifhjrifhaq;½HkwpfcktjzpfausmfMum;onfhjyif urÇmwpf0Srf;rSvlemrsm;yif 

vma&mufukovQuf½Sdygonf/ Bumrungrad aq;½Hk\twwfynmESifhyHhydk;rIrsm;onf yef;vdIiftjynfjynfqdkif&maq;½Hkudk rsm;pGm 

tusdK;jyKrnf[kjrifonfhtjyif jrefrmEdkifiHwGif xdyfwef;yk*¾vduaq;½Hkwpfcktaejzifh &yfwnfEdkifaprnf[k jrifygonf/ 

yef;vdIiftjynfjynfqdkif&maq;½Hkonf 2004ckESpf\ yxr(4)vydkif;avmufwGifpwifEkdif&ef vsmxm;ygonf/ pwifcsdefwGif 

ukwif(104)vHk;jzifh pwifrnfjzpfNyD; aemifvlemaqmif (2)ck xyfrHwkd;csJU&ef vsmxm;ygonf? aq;½kHpwifzGifhvSpfcsdefrS atmufyg|meESifh 

0efaqmifrIrsm;yg0ifayrnf/ 

ta&jym;a&m*g

rsufpd?em;?ESmacgif;

tpmtdrfvrf;aMumif;

taxGaxGcGJpdwfrI

oufMuD;½G,ftdk

udk,fwGif;a&m*gqdkif&maq;ynm

OD;aESmufESifhtm½HkaMum

rsufpda&m*gtxl;uk

t½dk;?taMuma&m*gtxl;uk

qD;a&m*gtxl;uk

txl;uk|me
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I C U
 

9 fully monitored rooms 

Central Monitoring station

 

Heart Center
 

Consultation Rooms

Non-invasive tests

Ultrasound

EKG

Stress Echo

Holter

 

Women Center
 

Consultation rooms

4 Delivery and Recovery Units

2 C-section delivery rooms

Nursery

As you can see, Pun Hlaing International Hospital will be providing a full range of medical services which 

will be catered to a wide range of patients from all strata of the society. We are confident that this investment 

would have profound social significance as well as commercial returns in the years to come.

Operation Theaters:

 

4 Major Operation Theatres

Day Surgery 

2 Endoscopy Rooms

9 Recovery Rooms

Laboratory Services

Diagnostics Center
      Imaging Department

  CT Scanner

  Ultrasound

  Radiography

  Mammography

  Fluoroscopy

 

Microbiology

Histology

Hematology

Clinical Chemistry

Blood Bank

Immunology/Serology

 

Emergency Department
      24 hours ambulance service

Pharmacy
In-patient

Out-patient

Medical Records Department

Children Center
      

      Well and Sick Baby concept

Management Information Services Dept.
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Pun Hlaing International Hospital
The Services Industry

Another significant event during the year was your Company's decision to increase its shareholding in Pun Hlaing 

International Hospital from 10% to 35% by investing additional Ks. 4,991 million. This is based on your Board's view 

that this project possesses the criteria of a high quality investment able to provide the Company with steady income for 

years to come..

Construction works is progressing well albeit about six months behind schedule. The superstructure is 100% 

complete and we are currently working on installing the building services, such as the mechanical and electrical systems, 

air-conditioning, medical gases, waste treatment plant and other infrastructure elements. Procurement of all main medical 

equipment has been finalized and are scheduled to arrive on site towards the end of the year.

On the 24th of February 2003, PHIH entered into an agreement with Bumrungrad Hospital International for the 

latter to provide total management services for a period of 6 years. The Bumrungrad Hospital in Bangkok today boasts 

one of the highest rating in Asia as a professionally run hospital with an international clientele from all over the world. We 

believe that their expertise and resources will greatly benefit PHIH and would further reinforce to deliver our 

commitment to be the leading private general hospital in Myanmar.

PHIH is scheduled to commence operation during the first quarter of 2004. It will be a hospital initially with 104 

beds with a plan to add additional beds in two medical wards in the future. The hospital will be offering the following 

services from the onset:

Specialist Center:

Dermatology
ENT
Gastroenterology
General Surgery
Geriatrics
Internal Medicines
Neurology
Ophthalmology
Orthopedic
Urology
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FIRST MYANMAR INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2003

16. ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Administration expenses consist of:
Kyats

Manager's share of profit (10%) 119,404,284.80
Managing agent fee 24,269,671.98
Office rental fee 25,283,161.60
A.G.M expenses (2002-2003) 14,000,000.00
FMI shareholder's card expenses 4,018,590.00
Mandalay office opening ceremony expenses 2,389,392.00
FMI Web site expenses 1,456,000.00
Advertising 3,687,958.00
Staff salary 2,015,000.00
Travelling allowance 2,010,961.00
Meal allowances 2,607,600.00
Bonus 2,650,917.00
Uniform allowance 274,089.00
Benefit fund 438,010.00
Depreciation 907,080.01
Amortization of renovation cost 744,889.10
Stationery and printing 806,170.00
Entertainment 565,805.00
Local travelling 342,045.00
Meeting expenses 291,855.00
Audit fees 250,000.00
Computer expenses 174,540.00
Duty tax and stamping 147,751.30
Utility charges 113,160.00
Repair and maintenance 67,425.00
Gift and present 62,900.00
Telex and fax 53,327.70
Repair and maintenance (Vehicle) 39,940.00
Subscription fee 36,715.00
Registration fee 28,470.00
Consultancy fee 24,000.00
Petrol expenses 17,315.00
Household expenses 15,965.00
Donation 7,560.00
Annual fee 7,500.00
Miscellaneous 62,212.00

209,272,260.49
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FIRST MYANMAR INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2003

17. FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Financial expenses consist of:
Kyats

Interest on bank loan 57,603,448.47
Bank charges 3,735.00

  57,607,183.47

18. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT (K3,652,675.00)

The above represents adjustment of under provision for AGM expenses for 2001-2002 financial year.

19. PROPOSED  DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors proposed on 29-7-2003, subject to approval by the members at the Annual General Meeting, the payment of 
a dividend of K4,000.00 (or 40% on par value) per share for 117,700 shares. The total proposed dividend is K 470,800,000.00.

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 

The Company has taken a loan from Yoma Bank Limited, its affiliated company. Most of the investments are also in affiliated 
companies.
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CORPORATE SECTION

COMPANY INFORMATION, REGISTRATION AND COMMENCING OF BUSINESS

First Myanmar Investment Co., Ltd. was founded with reference to Ministry of Trade, Company Register Office, Registration 

No. 159/92-93 dated July 3, 1992 and the Commencing of Business was on November 1, 1992.

ADVISORY BOARD

U Win Maung Colonel (Retired)

U Win Thin Auditor & Registered Accountant

U Hla Sein Director (Retired), Ministry of Industry (1)

U Mg Mg Soe Tint Ambassador to Australia & New Zealand (Retired)

U Hla Myint Thein Chairman, Myanmar General Chamber of Commerce (Retired)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF FIRST MYANMAR INVESTMENT CO., LTD.

U Hla Kyi Chairman

U Myat Thinn Aung Vice-Chairman

U Aung Win Khaing Vice-Chairman

U Kyaw Paing Managing Director (Full Time)

U Soe Win Board Secretary (Full Time)

U Soe Myint Board Secretary (Full Time)

U Than Aung Director

U Aung Swe Director

U Than Tun Director

U Ko Lay Director

U Kyi Aye Director (Represesntative of the Central Railways Welfare Society)

Agga Maha Thiri Thudama Theingi Daw Sai Director

MANAGING AGENT

Mr. Serge Pun Chairman

Serge Pun & Associate (Myanmar) Ltd.

AUDITOR

U Win Thin Win Thin & Associates

(Auditor & Registered Accountant)

CORPORATE ADDRESS

FIRST MYANMAR INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

FMI Centre, 10th & 11th floors, No.380, Bogyoke Aung San Road, Pabedan Township, Yangon

Tel: 240 363, 240 373, 240 383, 240 393
Fax: 246 881, 246 882, 246 883
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